
 

 

The Mayor’s European Social Fund (ESF) 2019 – 2023 Programme Round 2  

Parental Employment – Questions and Answers  
 
Q1: Do you think it is worth My Organisation applying for the project or were you 
looking for more full-time programmes? 
 
A: The GLA welcomes applications from all organisations who can demonstrate that 
they are able to meet the requirements of project set out in the application form. 
 
Q2: Page 2 of the project requirements document states that “Funding:  ⎯ Total of 
£6.5m equating to £1.625m per grant. Each grant comprises of 2 funding streams - 
a) Supporting Parents into work: £1m and b) Parents in work progression: £625k”. I 
have been asked to clarify whether projects applications must deliver BOTH funding 
streams or whether they can support an application for just one funding streams e.g. 
A project delivering ONLY Supporting Parents into Work; or A project delivering 
ONLY Parents In Work Progression please? 
 
A: Bidders must demonstrate how they will deliver both Supporting Parents into 
Work and Parents In Work Progression. 
 
Q3: Is the Parental Employment Project only for females because we also work with 
single fathers, and men that needs extra support into employment/self-employment? 
 
A: Projects are expected to aim to recruit and engage with 80% females, but this is 
not a minimum requirement (see section 1.6 of the Project Requirements) and both 
males and females are able to be engaged on the Parental Employment project. As 
explained in the Project Requirements, there is a focus on mothers and lone parents 
with children, the rationale for which includes the lower employment rates for women 
in London and the fact that, unlike men in London with dependent children, women in 
London with dependent children are less likely to be in work than their counterparts 
in the rest of the UK. In addition, the high maternal unemployment rate is a strong 
explanatory factor for the high rates of child poverty in the capital. 
 
Q4: Is the Parental Employment Project for 3 years? 
 
A: Please see the information in the Prospectus (page 8). Projects awarded funding 
through the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 programme must complete all delivery by 30 June 
2023 and all reporting by 31 July 2023. Grant Agreements awarded through this 
grant award process are currently expected to be in place from 1 August 2020. Each 
grant will therefore be awarded for a maximum of three years. 
 
Q5: How much money can we apply for to deliver the Parental Employment Project? 
 
A: See page 2 of the Project Requirements. A total of £6.5m is available for the 
Parental Employment project to be delivered through four geographically-focused 
grant awards, equating to £1.625m per grant award. Each grant award comprises 
£1m for Supporting Parents Into Work and £625,000 for Parents In Work 
Progression. Payments are made against outputs and outcomes delivered (in 



 

 

accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement) and bidders should demonstrate 
how they will achieve the target Primary Results within this funding envelope. 
 
Q6: After completing the application form for Parental Employment, whom do we 
email it to? 
 
A: Bidders should submit their completed Application by email to MayorsESF2019-
23Programme@London.gov.uk no later than 17:00 on 3 April 2020 in accordance 
with submission instructions provided on page 9 of the Application Form. 
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Q7: Can we apply for the funding to run Parental Employment for residents of just 
two of the boroughs in a sub-regional area? 
 
A: The project has been split into 4 smaller grants with the aim of ensuring 
geographical spread across London by sub-region, therefore bidders should seek to 
relate their activities to these geographical areas. All bidders need to demonstrate 
their rationale for their chosen delivery area in their application. A bidder may 
propose to focus the delivery of the project on a smaller number of boroughs if they 
are able to demonstrate a rationale for this, however parents who are residents from 
across the sub-region should still be allowed to participate. 
 
Q8: Geography: The level of funding is the same for each of the sub-regions 
(£1.625m for each one) despite the needs being arguably greater in some sub-
regions than others. Is there likely to be any flexibility on geography pre or post 
contract award or during the project lifetime?  

A: The project has been split into 4 smaller grants to ensure a geographical spread 
across London, therefore the bidder should ensure that their activities relate to these 
areas. The successful bidder will be monitored against the activities set out in their 
Application. During delivery, a provider will not be allowed to expand their delivery 
area into another sub-region which is covered by another provider. See also the 
responses to Q7 and Q9. 
 
Q9: Geography: With reference to the above region a provider is bidding across all 
four regions would it be OK to state within the bid that if the provider wins more than 
one region they will target funding at the areas of most need or is the £ value fixed in 
each sub region for the duration of the contract. 
 
A: While need will vary from area to area, the funding available is not intended to 
address all needs in any area and the grant value has therefore been set to ensure 
that there is delivery in each sub-region. The GLA will accept separate applications 
from the same organisation for each of the sub-regions. The bidder must 
demonstrate their rationale for their chosen geographical area in their Application. 
Please note that each Application will be evaluated seperately against the other 
applications for that sub-region. See also the responses to Q9 and Q10. 
Q8 and Q9. 
 



 

 

Q10: Bid: The bid now covers both into employment and in-work progression in the 
same tender whereas before they were split into two. Does the GLA have any 
preference as to how our answers are set out as to whether into work and in-work 
should be blended or separated in our answers? 
 
A: For some questions it would be beneficial for bidders to separate out elements of 
their answers to clearly demonstrate how they will work with, and support, the two 
different target groups to achieve the Primary Results. It should be apparent from the 
questions where this would be logical. Bidders must clearly demonstrate in their 
answers how they will deliver both Supporting Parents into Work and Parents in 
Work Progression.   
 
Q11: We are investigating making an application to the Parental Employment strand. 
However, we were not sure if Haringey falls within the geographical areas.  One area 
reference is the ‘local London strategic sub region.’ Are you able to confirm if a 
Haringey bid would be eligible? 
 
A: The London Borough of Haringey is situated within the Central London Forward 
Sub-Region, which is one of the four Sub-Regional areas to be covered by the four 
Parental Employment projects. All bidders need to demonstrate their rationale for 
their chosen delivery area in their application. Please also see the response to Q7. 
 
Q12: Is it possible that in theory that at least some of the participants on the 
Supporting Parents into work funding stream (1.a) could be the same as those in 
Parents in-work progression (1.b)? That is to say that an unemployed participant 
could start the programme, receive support under funding stream a, then get into 
work and receive support under funding stream b.  
 
If this is the case, if it can be the same participant under the employability stream as 
for the in-work progression stream then could the in-work progression funding be 
accessed before the sustained employment outcome at 26 weeks under the 
employability funding stream has been claimed? In this case the two funding streams 
would be running concurrently for an overlap period. This is in order to provide 
relevant support at a time that might help that learner stay in work. Or would the 
learner have to finish the employability funding stream in order to be able to access 
the in-work progression funding? 
 
A: The GLA recognises the value of supporting an unemployed or economically 
inactive Participant who has gained a job to go on to progress in their new 
employment. As set out in the Project Requirements, the GLA's expectation is that 
both unemployed or economically inactive Participants and their potential Employers 
are provided with support in the lead up to a Participant securing an Entry to 
Employment and that support is continued during the first six months of employment 
to enable the Participant to sustain that employment. In some cases, this support 
during the 6 month sustainment period might enable a Participant to progress in 
work as well as sustain their job. In the scenario outlined in the second paragraph of 
the question, the Participant would be on the Supporting Parents into Work and the 
Parents In Work Progression elements of the Project at the same time. Although the 
outcomes for the two ESF Priority Axes are different, the activities and support are 
similar across the two elements of the Project. This would result in duplication of 



 

 

activities and double-funding and so it is not permissible. However, if a previous 
Supporting Parents into Work Participant is at a point in their job where they feel that 
they would benefit from the Parents In Work Progression element of the Project (and 
they meet the eligibility requirements) they could be enrolled.  The Provider should 
be able to evidence that the support provided by Parents In Work Progression will 
add value to the support previously received on the Supporting Parents into Work 
element of the Project. Please note that Parents In Work Progression claims cannot 
be submitted for outputs already claimed under the Supporting Parents into Work 
element of the Project, such as Participants Receiving Childcare Support.  
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Q13: Parents in work progression - Is it possible that individuals to be counted in the  
both 'participants progressing in work (a positive change in contract)' and 
'participants progressing in work (moving into higher paid work paying at least the 
hourly LLW)' and could you give examples of these please? 
 
A: Please refer to Q12.  
 
Q14: Can you please answer the following queries regarding the payment trigger 
calculator for the Parental Employment lot: 1. Please confirm if the formula is correct 
on tab 6a of the payment trigger files: From Sep 21 to Oct 21 the repayment of the 
advance payment seems to jump up but our draft profiles appear to be fairly flat. 2. 
Please confirm if the formulas on tabs 6a and 6b of the payment trigger files are 
correct. In particular, using cell I48 as an example, the total only includes these lines, 
plus the advance repayment? Participants starting on the Project Participants with 
childcare needs receiving childcare support A minimum of 150 employers [1] 
engaged and trained on family friendly working policies and practices 
 
A: There is an error in the formula calculating the recovery of the advance. We 
apologise for any inconvenience caused by this error. Tabs 5a, 5b, 6a & 6b of the 
Parental Employment Payment Trigger Calculator have now been corrected. A 
Version 2 of the Parental Employment PTC has been published on 24/03/2020, with 
this error corrected. Please ensure you submit your application using Version 2 of 
the Parental Employment PTC. 
 
Q15: For the In-Work Progression stream is it compulsory to have employer 
involvement and would the employer need to sign any documentation? or is it 
possible that some learners may self-refer independently of their employer, even 
without the employer's support, and progress by moving to a new, higher paid job at 
a different employer? As for some learners this may be their only or best option. 
 
A: Yes, the participant is able to voluntarily and independently join the Project 
without their employer's knowledge. Whilst employer engagement is encouraged 
wherever possible the eligibility of the 'In-Work Progression' Participants for this 
Project is not determined by employer knowledge or consent. 
 
Q16: Error on Parental Payment Trigger Calculator - we have discovered that there 
isn't a row to enter the volumes for Participants sustaining in work progression for 26 
weeks (out of 32) in the Output Results Profile PWP worksheet or the Project Income 



 

 

PWP. Are you please able to reissue a version with these errors amended and 
ensure all formulas are linked correctly? 
 
A: The row for entering the numbers for 'Participants Sustaining in work progression 
for 26 weeks (out of 32)' on the Parental Employment Payment Trigger Calculator 
had been hidden in error. We apologise for any inconvenience caused by this error. 
This has now been corrected. A Version 2 of the Parental Employment PTC has 
been published on 24/03/2020, with this error corrected. Please ensure you submit 
your application using Version 2 of the Parental Employment PTC. 
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Q18: Is there a requirement for a minimum number of hours of delivery, or specific 
types of activity for the Parental Employment Project? We are considering delivering 
a short training course followed by short periods of work experience with the 
opportunity to gain soft and in-work skills and over a few months, but we are not sure 
if this would be eligible. 
 
A: The GLA cannot comment on specific project proposals or methodologies. 
Applications will be evaluated against the degree to which they meet the published 
Project Requirements. However, in general terms the activities mentioned would be 
eligible for support. The GLA has not set any minimum hours of delivery. As 
mentioned in response to Q12 of the General questions, the GLA has not set 
requirements for the duration that a Participant should/may stay on a Project 
because the level of support and the time the Participant takes to progress onto an 
EET destination will vary by individual.  
 
Published March 31 2020  
 
Q19: We are looking into completing an application for the Parental Employment 
2019-23 Programme, and had the following question; 
 
We understand that 4 projects will be funded, and that the funding comprises of two 
strands (one for the unemployed and one for employed learners). Can you please 
confirm whether each bid should incorporate BOTH the employed and unemployed 
pathway or whether you choose only one pathway? 
 
A: Please see the response to Q3. Bidders must demonstrate how they will deliver 
both Supporting Parents into Work and Parents In Work Progression.  
 
Published 07 April 2020  
 
Q20: Are you able to provide copies of Childcare Sufficiency Assessments(CSA) for 
London Boroughs to assist with our tender for Parental Employment? 
 
A: Every local authority (LA) should annually complete a Childcare Sufficiency 
Assessment (CSA). If these aren't published on their websites you should be able to 
request a copy of their most recent CSA directly from the relevant LA 
 



 

 

Q21: I have a problem with Payment Trigger Calculator Sheet 3 - Lines 30 & 35. 
Both are showing red and the message is: "Number of sustaining employment 
cannot exceed the number entering employment." Can you please help me to rectify 
the situation. 
 
A: Cells E30 and G35 will show red if the number entered is less than the minimum 
primary result number shown in cells I30 and I35 respectively.  
 
The error message 'Number of sustaining employment cannot exceed the number 
entering employment' will appear in cell E30 and G35 of Sheet 3 if there is a figure 
lower in cells E29 and G33 & G44 (combined) than in cells E30 and G35. This is 
because the number of 'Participants sustaining Employment/Progression' needs to 
be lower than the number of 'Participants Entering Employment' or 'Progressing in 
the work place'. 
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Q22: Can you please clarify whether or not we have to bid for the for the whole or 
part of the project. The budget for Supporting Parents into Work is £100000 for 100 
Participants and budget for Parents in Work Progression is £625000 for 75 
Participants. Can we bid to lesser number of Participants and Value. 
 
A: Bidder are required to bid for the whole Project to deliver the minimum Primary 
Results stated in the Project Requirements per grant. Bidders may apply to deliver 
this Project for less than the allocated funding available, as long as the minimum 
Primary Results are achieved. Bidders must demonstrate how they will deliver both 
the Supporting Parents into Work and Parents In Work Progression elements of the 
project. 
 
Q23: In the Funding and Targets Table (vii) for ESF Parenting, could you please 
confirm if "employers engaged and trained..." are to be treated as "participants" 
when calculating the volume percentage. It seems to me that the volume percentage 
should be 100% for "employers" otherwise the figures will be distorted in this table? 
 
A: Employers are not counted as 'Participants' in table (vii) - Part A Funding and 
Targets. Therefore, there is no need to enter a figure in the '%' column for the 
'employers engaged and trained...' output. Apologies, there should not have been a 
'text entry field' on this column in the form. Please ensure however that you do enter 
a figure in the 'volume' column for the 'employers engaged and trained...' output so 
we can see the total number of employers you anticipate achieving this output.  
 
Q24: I understand that the bids for the above are now one bid for both aspects of 
this Project –i.e. supporting Parents into work and supporting parents in work on low 
pay with progression. Given the broader scope of this we will be subcontracting 
some of our delivery, but we will be applying as the Lead Bidder with financial 
responsibility. Can you please confirm that this definition (A) is what we identify as in 
Part B (ii)? Specifically, we will not be ‘a Consortia or Partnership with joint and 
several liabilities’ as stated in (C) as we will be the lead and manage all 
subcontracted activity. There has been previous confusion about this definition and 
we just need to be absolutely clear. 



 

 

A: The definition provided in the question implies that this Bidder will be applying as 
a 'Sole Lead Bidder'. However, please note that the GLA is unable to confirm the 
entity in which a Bidder should submit an Application. Therefore, all bidders should 
check the definitions of Consortium, Sole Deliverer and Sole Lead Bidder provided in 
Appendix B of the Prospectus. 
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